GLENDALE COMMUNITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC SENATE CONSTITUTION

Content:

ARTICLE I NAME

ARTICLE II PURPOSE AND DUTIES

ARTICLE IV
ARTICLE V

ARTICLE V

ELECTORATE
MEMBERSHIP
OFFICERS

ARTICLE VI FUNCTIONS AND PROCEDURES

ARTICLE VIII COMMITTEES
ARTICLE VIII BY-LAWS

ARTICLE IX AMENDMENTS

ARTICLE I: NAME

Section 1. Name. The name of this organization shall be the Academic Senate of

Glendale Community College.

ARTICLE II: PURPOSE AND DUTIES

Section 1. Purpose. The purpose of this organization shall be to represent the

faculty in the formation of policy on academic and professional matters,

as stated in the Academic Senate's 10+1.1

Section 2. Duties. It is the duty of the Senate to address, either directly or through

its designated committees, all matters pertaining to the educational wellbeing of the college, to develop and establish faculty positions on all such matters and to inform all relevant constituencies, inside and outside the college, of these positions. The Senate shall also assume responsibilities as legally directed, for example, in the California Code of Regulations,

Section 53200.

ARTICLE III: ELECTORATE

Section I. Electorate. The Electorate shall consist of all faculty members whose

primary assignment does not require an administrative and/or supervisory

credential.

1

¹ See Appendix for 10+1 Senate Constitution 8-2022

- A. **Regular Faculty**: any faculty member who has begun or completed the tenure process, excluding Emeritus Faculty.
- B. **Adjunct Faculty**: any faculty member who has not begun the tenure process, including leave replacements.
- C. **Emeritus Faculty**: any Faculty member who has retired from Glendale College but continues to be employed as a part-time faculty member for the institution. For purposes of this document, Emeritus Faculty are considered Academic Adjunct Faculty.
- D. **Contract Faculty:** any faculty member hired for a term or a defined amount of time.

ARTICLE IV: MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Eligibility.

- A. Regular faculty are eligible to serve as a division representative.
- B. Adjunct faculty are eligible to serve as Adjunct At Large representative.
- C. All faculty are eligible to serve as At Large representative.

Section, 2. Number and Election.

- A. The Senate shall consist of an appropriate number of members to allow representation from each division, Academic Adjunct areas and library. These representatives will constitute approximately two thirds of the Senate. Additionally, at least one third of the Senate body shall be At Large representation, in accordance with the Senate By-Laws.
- B. The Senators shall be chosen by the following units and in the following manner:
 - a. Voting units shall be composed of:
 - Regular faculty from the divisions as specified in the Senate By-Laws
 - ii. At-Large representatives
 - iii. Adjunct faculty as defined in the Senate By-Laws
 - iv. Library Representative
- C. **Division Senator Election:** At a meeting (or by written ballot) at the April division meeting, each division voting unit shall elect by majority vote one Regular Faculty member to serve as Division Senator.

- D. **Academic Adjunct Senators Election:** The Adjunct and At-Large faculty members shall be chosen in the following manner:
 - a. The chair of the Elections Committee will be responsible for distributing self-nomination forms to all Adjunct Faculty in the Spring Semester. All Adjunct Faculty Nominees' names will appear on the Academic Adjunct ballot in the general election. Nominations will be conducted before Spring Break and ballots delivered directly thereafter. These senators will be elected by approval voting and by secret ballot. The election will be concluded at the end of April.
- E. At-Large Senator Election: Each Division voting unit may also nominate at least one Regular Faculty member by majority vote (a secret ballot may be used) for an At-Large position. Each division voting unit with fifteen or more Regular Faculty members may nominate one additional Regular Faculty member for an At-Large position. All nominations shall be made at a meeting (or by written ballot) before Spring Break.
 - a. Any member of the Electorate, including both Regular and Adjunct Faculty, may be nominated for an At-large position by petition in accordance with the Election Code of the Senate By-Laws.
 - b. The required number of Senators-at-Large shall be elected by approval voting by the Electorate, in accordance with the Election Code of the Senate By-Laws.
 - c. Senators-elect shall be invited to attend all meetings of the Senate during May and June as non-voting observers, and shall take office at the close of the Spring Semester.
- F. Senators may be recalled by a two-thirds vote.
 - a. A recall election for a division senator may be held at any regularly scheduled division meeting if the recall election has previously been placed on the agenda and distributed at least three days prior to the meeting.
 - b. A recall election for an Academic Adjunct Senator will be conducted by the Chair of the Elections Committee within thirty days of receiving a petition with fifty signatures from members of the Academic Adjunct unit.
 - c. A recall election for an At-Large Senator will be conducted by the Chair of the Elections Committee within thirty days of receiving a petition with fifty signatures from members of the Senate Electorate.

Section 3. Terms of Office.

- A. Division senators shall be elected for three-year terms, except when a change in voting units disrupts the Senate Rotation Schedule. In such cases, the first elected representative of a new voting unit may serve a term of less than three years in accordance with the Election Code of the Senate By-Laws.
- B. Senators At-Large shall be elected for three-year terms except when a change in voting units disrupts the Senate Rotation Schedule. In of less than three years in accordance with the Election Code of the Senate By-Laws.
- **Section 4.** Reelection. There shall be no restrictions on reelection to the Senate.

Section 5. Vacancies.

- A. If a vacancy occurs in the Senate, the voting unit Senator or the At-Large Senator shall be replaced in accordance with the Election Code of the Senate By-Laws.
- B. Should a Voting Unit fail to comply with Article IV, Section 2.B.2. or 2.B.3., the Senate can, at its discretion, fill the vacant position for the remainder of the term by calling a special At-Large election or by appointing a replacement directly.

Section 6. Responsibilities.

Elected senators are trustees of their constituents. Senators may poll and shall consider recommendations made by their constituents; however, no individual or group may dictate the vote of a senator. A senator will always consider the good of the college community first and foremost.

ARTICLE V: OFFICERS

Section 1. Senate Executive Committee and Officers.

The officers shall be the President, or Immediate Past-President, President-Elect, First Vice-President, Second Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and Budget Committee Representative. These officers shall constitute the Senate Executive Committee.

Section 2. Selection and Terms.

Elected officers shall assume their offices at the close of the academic year. Elections will be conducted by secret ballot.

- A. **President and President-Elect:** Before the final year of the current Senate President's term, the Senate shall elect the President-Elect by majority vote at the last regular Senate meeting. The President, at the end of his or her first year of the first term, may request to extend the term of office for an additional year, and may be approved by majority vote at the last regular Senate meeting.
- B. **Other Elected Officers**: By majority vote, the Senate shall elect the First Vice-President, Second Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer. The election shall occur at the last regularly scheduled Senate meeting of the academic year.
- C. Budget Committee Representative: This representative shall be appointed from the Senate by the elected officers of the Senate Executive Committee immediately after the last regularly scheduled Senate Meeting of the academic year.
- D. Terms of Office: The terms of office shall be one (1) year for President-Elect, First Vice-President, Second Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, Immediate Past-President, and Budget Committee Representative. The term of office shall be two (2) years for the President; however, at the end of the first year of the President's term, and every year thereafter, the President may elect to extend the term of office for an additional year subject to approval by a majority vote of the Senate. The position of Immediate Past-President will be held during the first year of the President's term. The position of President-Elect will be held during the final year of the President's term and will be elected along with the other Senate officers at the last regularly scheduled Senate meeting prior to the beginning of the final year of the President's term.
- E. Immediate Past-President or President Elect: During the first year of the President's term, the Senate Executive will be composed of the President, First Vice-President, Second Vice-President, Treasurer, Secretary, Immediate Past-President, and Budget Committee Representative. During the final year of the President's term, the Senate Executive will be composed of the President, First Vice-President, Second Vice-President, Treasurer, Secretary, President-Elect, and Budget Committee Representative.

Section 3. Reelection.

There shall be no restrictions on reelection of officers or on reappointment of representatives.

Section 4. Vacancies.

- A. President. In the event that the President is not a member of the Senate during what would have been the second year of his or her term, the Senate will conduct a special election to fill the office of the President for a two-year term. If there is less than one year left of the term, the First Vice-President shall fill the office for the remainder of the academic year.
- B. **Other Elected Officers.** In the case of the continued disability or resignation of any elected officer, other than the President, the Senate shall hold a special election to fill the vacancy.
- C. Budget Committee Representative. In the case of the continued disability or resignation of this representative, the Senate Executive Committee shall designate a member of the Senate to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term.

Section 5. Powers and Duties.

No person may hold more than one position at the same time on the Senate Executive Committee.

- A. **President**. It shall be the duty of the President:
 - 1. To preside at all Senate meetings, including the Senate Electorate meetings.
 - 2. To chair the Senate Executive Committee and be an ex-officio member of all other Senate committees.
 - 3. To issue Calls-to-Meetings of the Senate, and, along with Senate Executive Committee, to develop/distribute agendas and minutes from previous meetings.
 - 4. To cast the deciding vote in the event of a Senate deadlock. The President shall not regularly vote on matters before the Senate.
 - 5. To serve as the Senate representative to the Academic Affairs Committee.
 - 6. To serve as the Senate representative to the Board of Trustees.
 - 7. To appoint with the approval of the Senate Executive:
 - a. Chairs to tenure review committees (by end of September)
 - b. Senate representatives to all governance committees (as needed)
 - c. Senate representatives to all administrative and faculty hiring committees (as requested)
 - d. Nominations to ASCCC committees (as requested)
 - 8. To represent Glendale Community College at ASCCC.
 - 9. To post the Senate agenda in accordance with the Brown Act.
 - 10. To perform such other duties as may be necessary and proper.

B. President Elect is advised but not required:

- 1. To attend College Executive, Academic Affairs, and Enrollment Management meetings as recommended by the Senate President.
- 2. To attend meetings of Mini-Cabinet as recommended by the Senate President.
- 3. To attend the Academic Senate of the California Community Colleges (ASCCC) Fall or Spring Plenary session to learn the delegate process.
- 4. To attend the Fall and/or Spring Area C meeting of the State Academic Senate prior to the Spring Plenary to gain insight into the resolution process of the ASCCC.

C. First Vice-President.

It shall be the duty of the First Vice-President:

- 1. To assist and act as substitute for the President at the request of the President.
- 2. To oversee the implementation of governance matters as they relate to the Senate.
- 3. To Chair the Disciplines List Committee and the Equivalencies Committee.
- To work with the Senate and Academic Affairs to determine assignment to discipline for new courses and to keep records of same.
- 5. To review and edit new job announcements for correct discipline.
- 6. To welcome all newly elected Senators.

D. Second Vice-President.

It shall be the duty of the Second Vice-President:

- To coordinate the work of the Senate ad hoc committees and task forces appointed by the Senate and to maintain records of all committee memberships, activities, and reports.
- 2. To coordinate all academic issues pertinent to Adjunct Faculty.
- 3. To welcome all newly elected Senators.

E. Secretary.

It shall be the duty of the Secretary:

- To take accurate minutes for all meetings of the Senate and to publish and distribute those minutes to all Senators and to others as deemed necessary by the Senate Executive Committee, and to post minutes on the Senate web site.
- 2. To chair the Elections Committee.
- 3. To prepare and process all routine correspondence pertaining to the Senate.

4. To ensure that the work of the Senate is communicated to the Electorate.

F. Treasurer.

It shall be the duty of the Treasurer:

- To receive, deposit, and disburse all Senate funds, to keep accurate records of all such transactions, and to present an annual budget to the Senate no later than the second October Senate meeting.
- 2. To serve as Senate Representative to the Foundation.
- 3. To coordinate Senate-sponsored social functions.
- 4. Once a year, to encourage all faculty to contribute to the Senate, either through monthly payroll deductions or as a one-time contribution.
- 5. Once a year, to encourage all faculty to contribute to Senate scholarships.
- 6. To chair the Scholarship Committee.
- 7. To send thank you notices to all new contributors to Senate and/or scholarship fund(s).

G. Budget Committee Representative.

It shall be the duty of the Budget Committee Representative:

- 1. To represent the interest of the Senate in the GCC budget process.
- 2. To make presentations to the Senate membership regarding budget issues or activities.
- 3. To study the budget process and remain current in all budget activities both locally and at the state level.
- 4. To attend all meetings of the GCC Budget Committee.
- 5. To solicit and review applications for the Senate Innovation Grant
- 6. To serve as Senate Representative on the Adjunct Ancillary Funds Committee.
- 7. To chair the Budget Advisory Committee.

ARTICLE VI: FUNCTIONS AND PROCEDURES

Section 1. Meetings and Special Meetings

- A. The Senate shall be required to hold at least one general meeting with the Electorate each academic year.
- B. The Senate shall be required to hold at least one regular meeting per month during the fall and spring semesters.
- C. Special meetings:

- i. May be called by the Senate Executive Committee.
- ii. Shall be called by the President upon receipt of a written request signed by one-third of the Senators or 5% of the members of the Electorate.
- D. The agenda for all general, regular, and special meetings shall be prepared by the Senate Executive Committee and distributed to the members of the Senate at least three working days prior to the particular meeting. The agenda shall also be posted in a public location on campus.
- E. Meetings of the Senate shall be open to the public. Visitors may speak at Senate meetings during the Comments from the Audience agenda item. Unless visitors are recognized by the Chair during the course of the Senate meeting, they may not participate in Senate debate or discussion.
- F. Roberts Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of all meetings except as may be otherwise provided in the Senate By-Laws or Senate Rules.
- **Section 2. Quorum.** Two-thirds of the Senate shall constitute a quorum.

Section 3. To Give Proxy Vote.

A Senator who is unable to attend a meeting is responsible to give a written proxy form to any other member of the Electorate who is not a Senator. The proxy form must be given to the Secretary at the beginning of the meeting and entitles the bearer to full speaking and voting rights for that meeting. In no case shall an individual hold more than one proxy at any given meeting.

Section 4. Introduction of Pertinent Matters.

Any member of the Electorate may submit items for the Senate agenda by written request, presented to any Senator. The Senator shall deliver such items in the form of motions or resolutions which bear the signatures of a presenter and a seconder to the Senate Executive Committee. If delivered via email, then presenter's and seconder's name must be included in the email delivery. The Senate Executive Committee shall place the item on the agenda for one of the next two Senate meetings or refer the item to a specific committee. Disposition of such items shall be reported to the Senate.

Section 5. Processing of Matters Referred to Committee.

Upon the completion of a committee's work, the chair shall submit its report to the Senate Executive Committee for placement on the Senate agenda.

Section 6. Disposition of Senate Findings.

- A. The Senate should make known the results of all Senate reports, recommendations, and polls to the Electorate and, if appropriate, to the College Administration.
- B. A majority vote of the whole number of Senators shall be required for further action.
- C. Senate recommendations for further action shall be presented to the appropriate governance committee.
- D. If necessary, Senate recommendations for further action may then be presented to the College Board of Trustees.

Section 7. Opinion Polling.

- A. Whenever the Senate-decides that a reasonable doubt exists as to the wishes of the faculty, it may direct the Elections Committee to conduct a poll of the Electorate before committing the faculty to a major action.
- B. Fifteen percent of the Electorate, by submitting an appropriate petition to the Senate, shall cause a poll of the total Electorate to be taken on any relevant subject whether or not it has been previously considered by the Senate.

Section 8. Senate Rules.

The Senate shall be responsible for constructing its own rules of operating procedure which shall be known as the Senate Rules and which shall have the status of By-Laws of this Constitution. Changes in the Senate Rules may be made by a majority vote of the whole number of Senators provided the change has been proposed at a previous regular meeting of the Senate. The Senate shall annually review the Senate Rules.

Section 9. Censure and Expulsion of a Senator.

- A. The procedure for censure and expulsion shall be determined by the Senate and placed in the Senate Rules.
- B. A two-thirds vote of the whole number of Senators shall be required for censure.
- C. A three-fourths vote of the whole number of Senators shall be required for expulsion.

ARTICLE VII: COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committee and Taskforce

For the purpose of the Academic Senate the terms committee shall mean permanent long standing committees and taskforce shall mean temporary work groups who report to the 2nd Vice President.

Section 2. Operations Committees.

- A. The Operations Committees of the Senate shall include the Senate Executive Committee and the Elections Committee.
- B. Committee compositions and duties not otherwise mentioned in the Constitution, shall be specified in the Senate By-Laws or Senate Rules.

Section 3. Other Committees.

Other committees may be established at the direction of the Senate or the Senate Executive Committee.

ARTICLE VIII BY-LAWS

Section I. Additions and Amendments.

By-Laws to this Constitution may be adopted or amended by a two-thirds vote of the Senate provided the proposal has been introduced in writing at a previous regular or special Senate meeting.

ARTICLE IX: AMENDMENTS

Section I. Proposal.

- A. Amendments to the Constitution may be proposed by a majority vote of the whole number of Senators or by petition signed by 25% of the Electorate and presented to the Senate Executive Committee.
- B. All proposed amendments shall be submitted in writing to the Electorate at least one week prior to voting.

Section 2. Ratification.

- A. To be adopted, the proposed amendment shall require a three-fourths majority of votes cast by the Electorate.
- B. An amendment shall become effective immediately, unless otherwise provided.

END

APPENDIX

10+1

Title 5 §53200 (b): Academic Senate means an organization whose primary function is to make recommendations with respect to academic and professional matters. Section 53200 (c) "Academic and professional matter" means the following policy development and implementation matters:

- 1. Curriculum including establishing prerequisites and placing courses within disciplines
- 2. Degree and certificate requirements
- 3. Grading policies
- 4. Educational program development
- 5. Standards or policies regarding student preparation and success
- 6. District and college governance structures, as related to faculty roles
- 7. Faculty roles and involvement in accreditation processes, including self-study and annual reports
- 8. Policies for faculty professional development activities
- 9. Processes for program review
- 10. Processes for institutional planning and budget development
- 11. Other academic and professional matters as mutually agreed upon between the governing board and the academic senate.

Approved Fall 1997

Adopted Revisions: Revised May 2002

Revised May 2003 Revised May 2020